






CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

51 AUDITORS' REPORT 

56 BALANCE SHEET 

57 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

58 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

59 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

61 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 

94 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

95 AUDITORS' REPORT 

103 BALANCE SHEET 

104 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

105 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

106 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

108 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 

143 STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 129 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 RELATING TO 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

ANNUAL REPORT I 2020-2021 I BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL 



























13

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

BOARD’S REPORT
Your Director’s are pleased to present the Thirty Forth Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together 

st

FINANCIAL RESULTS

st

follows: 

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

2020-21 2020-21

Net Sales/ Income from Operations 54839.35 39677.23

Other Income 495.10 427.60

Total Income 55334.45 40104.83

3717.50 3391.63

Finance Cost 2385.98 2318.12

1331.52 1073.51

Depreciation 1033.49 835.69

298.03 237.82

28.37 79.95

269.66 157.87 7

(887.33) -

(617.67) 157.87

25.76 25.25

(591.91) 183.12

1220.24 1220.24

32811.76 27920.40

(4.83) 1.29

(4.82) 1.29

- -

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 

IMPACT OF COVID-19

st

th June, 2020 and resumed gradually with prescribed regulations and 
st



14

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

DIVIDEND

RESERVES

SHARE CAPITAL 

Dates Description No. of shares Total value of shares (`)

Share Capital at the beginning of the year

Addition

Share Capital at the end of the year

st

CREDIT RATING

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

are set out in Annexure A

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

st

st

DETAILS AND PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

Domestic Subsidiaries 

Bhartiya Global Marketing Ltd

J&J Leather Enterprises Ltd.

Bhartiya International SEZ Ltd.

Bhartiya Fashion Retail Ltd.

Bhartiya Urban Infrastructure Ltd

Overseas Subsidiaries

Ultima S.A. Switzerland

World Fashion Trade Ltd, Mauritius
st March 

Ultima Italia SRL, Italy

Design Industry Ltd, Hongkong

Design Industry China Ltd, China

New Subsidiary /Associate Company Incorporated / Dissolved during the year
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Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

ANNUAL RETURN

same is 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015

DIRECTORS

th

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sl. No. Name of the person Designation

2

Company Secretary

Company Secretary

th 

th
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COMMITTEES

The details of the composition of Committees, terms of reference and numbers of Meetings held during the Financial Year 

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

selection of the candidates

BOARD EVALUATION

th

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

posted on the website of the Company (www.bhartiya.com). 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

st

st March, 

STATUTORY AUDIT

th

th

th

COST AUDIT AND MAINTANANCE OF COST RECORD 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
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Annexure ‘B’ and forms an 

th February, 
st

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

RISK MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

th

Annexure ‘C’
uploaded on Company’s website at 

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

st

Annexure D
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HUMAN RESOURCES 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT FOR UNCLAIMED SHARES

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORTING

st

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

GENERAL

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

 For and on behalf of the Board

 Snehdeep Aggarwal
 Chairman

th August, 20
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

Annexure A
ESOP DISCLOSURE

Statement Pursuant to Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014

Name of the Scheme

Source of shares Fresh issue of shares

None

employee compensation cost so computed and the employee 

Not applicable

Particulars Year Ended  
31st March, 2021

Senior managerial personnel
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st

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2021

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period

Number of options granted during the year Nil

Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year

company 

NA

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year

NA

including the following information:

September
16, 2015

December
31, 2015

February
03, 2018

April
05, 2018

The method used and the assumptions made to incorporate 
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ANNEXURE B
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
ST

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule No. 9 of the Companies]
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The Members

corporate practices by BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

 (Not applicable 
to the Company during the audit period)

 (Not applicable as the Company is not registered as 
Registrar and Transfer Agent during the audit period)

(Not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period) 

(Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period). and 
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For RSM & CO.
Company Secretaries

CS Ravi Sharma
Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666
UDIN: F004468C000790022
Peer Review Cert. No. 978/2020  

th
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The Members

For RSM & CO.
Company Secretaries

CS Ravi Sharma
Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666
UDIN: F004468C000790022
Peer Review Cert. No. 978/2020  

th
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ANNEXURE C

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

 

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Designation/ 
Nature of 
Directorship

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee held 
during the year

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during 
the year

Chairperson 2 2

2 Member 2

Member 2 2

 

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

NIL

-NIL

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial 
Year.
(in Rs.)

Amount Unspent 
(in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 
135(5).

Amount  
(in Rs.)

Date of 
transfer.

Name of the 
Fund

Amount. Date of 
transfer.

81,85,199

Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the  year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl.
No.

Name of 
the Project.

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No).

Location of the 
project.

Project 
duration.

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project (in 

Rs.).

Amount 
spent 
in the 

current 
financial 

Year  
(in Rs.).

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 

the project as 
per Section 

135(6)  
(in Rs.).

Mode of 
Implementa 
tion-Direct 
(Yes/No).

Mode of 
Implementation – 

Through Implementing 
Agency

State. District. Name CSR 
Registration 

number

Yes Tamil 
Nadu

Chengalpet 
District

Yes Not 
Applicable
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Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl.
No.

Name of the Project Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule 
VII to the 

Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No).

Location of the 
project.

Amount 
spent for 

the project 
(in Rs.).

Mode of 
implementati 

on- Direct 
(Yes/No).

Mode of implementation 
– Through implementing 

agency.

State. District. Name. CSR 
registration 

number.
Rural Yes Yes Not Applicable

Rural Yes Chennai Chengalpet Yes No Applicable

Promoting Yes Faridabad Yes
International 
Institute of 

Studies
the time of 
contribution 
made

TOTAL 73,23,199

NIL

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicalbe

Not Applicable

Sl.
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR Account 

under section 
135 (6) (in Rs.)

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs.)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years. 
(in Rs.)

Name of 
the Fund

Amount  
(in Rs)

Date of 
transfer

TOTAL 23,72,801

Details of CSR amount spent in  for ongoing projects of the preceding 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl.
No.

Project 
ID.

Name of the 
Project.

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced.

Project 
duration

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent on the 
project in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs)

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

Financial Year 
(in Rs.)

Status of 
the project-
Completed/ 
Ongoing.

One Year Ongoing

TOTAL 86,20,000 8,62,000 8,62,000

Not Applicable

Not 
Applicable

 For and on behalf of the Board

 Snehdeep Aggarwal
 Chairman

th August, 20
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Annexure D 

a. Conservation of Energy

 

b. Technology Absorption

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 

 
 For and on behalf of the Board

 Snehdeep Aggarwal
 Chairman

th August, 20
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate  for the year ended st March,  in terms 
of Regulation  read with Schedule  of the   Obligations and Disclosure R  Regulations, 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate   around the principles of ethical  which guides 
and directs the management to conduct the business in an  manner to meet its obligations towards shareholders’ and 
other   Corporate  which aims to promote fairness, transparency and integrity of the 
management, is not a mere legal compulsion but rather a way of life, which helps in inspiring and strengthening  

 in the 

In rapidly changing business and technological    maintains its industry 
leadership through continuous  to  upon  aspects on an  basis and adopts  
approaches for  resources,  opportunities and  fostering a healthy growth and  
of human resources thus generated  among business partners, customers and  and at the same time  
its social 

During the Financial year  the Company is in compliance of the  stipulated under  
Regulations, as applicable, 

with regard to Corporate 

The detailed Corporate  Report of  is as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a. Composition of the Board, Other Directorships and Committee Memberships:

st

below:

Name Director 
Identification 

Number

Date of 
Appointment

Category of 
Directors

Directorships 
in other 

Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
other Committees

List of 
Directorship
held in Other 

Listed
Companies 

and Category 
of Directorship

Chairman Member

Promoter,  

Chairman
Promoter,  

 

Director

2

 

Director
 

Director
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Name Director 
Identification 

Number

Date of 
Appointment

Category of 
Directors

Directorships 
in other 

Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
other Committees

List of 
Directorship
held in Other 

Listed
Companies 

and Category 
of Directorship

Chairman Member

Independent Director

Independent Director
2

Independent Director

Independent Director

Machaiah Independent Director
2 2

Independent 
Director

PC Jeweller 

Independent 
Director

 of only Audit Committees and  Relationship Committees in all Public 
 Companies   International   been  Members of the  of the 

Company do not  membership of more than ten  Committees or Chairman of more than  such 

 Independent Directors also meet the criteria as  under Regulation  of the   
Regulations read with Section  of the Companies Act, 

 of  retiring or being  are  in the notice to Annual   The brief 
 of the   on the website of the Company www

b. Number of Board Meetings: 

 The  meets at regular  to discuss and decide on business strategies/policies  the  
performance of the Company and its  The  Meetings are  well in  to facilitate the 
Directors to plan their  In case of business  the   is  through circular resolutions 
after complying with the  of the Companies Act,  and rules made thereunder and also as per Secretarial 

 The notice of each  Meeting is  in writing to each Director  The Agenda along with the  notes and other 
material information are sent in  separately to each Director and in  cases tabled at the  
This ensures timely and informed decisions by the 

 In the  year  the  met four  The meetings were held th June, 2020, th August, 
2020, th , and th February,  The  between two meetings was well within the  
period mentioned under Section  of the Companies Act,  and the   Regulations and Circulars issued 

 The attendance of Directors at the  meetings held during the  year ended st March,  and at the 
 Annual  Meeting  was as under:
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Name of Director No. of Board Meetings 
Attended * 

Attendance at Last 
AGM
Absent
Present
Absent
Present
Present
Absent
Absent
Absent
Absent
Absent

 Meeting attended through Tele 

 Selection of Independent Directors 

c. Skills/expertise/competencies of the Board 

 Company is managed by the  of Directors in coordination with the Senior Management 
 The  periodically  the need for change in its composition and 

Name of the Directors Core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of 
Directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s)
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d. Information Supplied to the Board

 The  has complete access to all the information with the  

e. Post Meeting Mechanism

 The important decisions  at the  Committee meetings are communicated to the concerned departments/ 

f. Board Support

 The Company Secretary attends the  meetings and  the  on Compliances with applicable laws and 

g. Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

 st

Name of the Directors No. of shares held

h. Roles, Responsibilities and Duties of the Board

 

i. Independent Directors

 

j. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

 At the time of appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter  concerned Director, which 
 the role, function, duties and responsibilities  from a Director of the  The Director 

is also  in detail the Compliance  from them under Companies Act,    Regulations 
and other  statutes and thereafter an  is  The Chairman also has a one to one discussion 
with the newly appointed Director to  him/her with the Company’s  

 Further, on an ongoing basis as a part of Agenda of  / Committee Meetings, presentations are regularly made to the 
Independent Directors on  matters inter   the Company’s and its subsidiaries/associates businesses and 
operations, industry and regulatory updates, strategy,   management  role, rights, responsibilities 
of the Independent Directors under  statutes and other  

on the website of the Company and can be accessed on 
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k. Conflict of Interests

  Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the  and the Committee positions he/she occupies 
in other companies including Chairmanships and  changes during the  The Members of the  while 
discharging their duties,   of interest in the decision   The Members of the  restrict 

 from any discussions and  in transactions in which they  concern or 

 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 The  of Directors  constituted  Committees to deal with  areas and  which concern the 
Company and need a closer  The  Committees are formed with  of the  and function under 
their   These  Committees play an important role in  management of  affairs 
and  of the  The  Committees meet at regular   necessary steps to perform its 
duties entrusted by the  To ensure good  the Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed before the 

 for their 

 The  has currently the following Committees:

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

 

 The composition,  role and scope are in accordance with Section  of the Companies Act,  and 
the  of Regulation  of the    All members of the Audit Committee bring in  in 
the  of Finance, T    and International F   Sandeep Seth is the Chairman of the Audit 

   and     are the members of the Audit 

 Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Audit 

(ii) Meetings and Attendance during the Financial Year 2020-21

 The Members of the Audit Committee met four times during the Financial Year  The Company is in full compliance 
with the  of Regulation  of the   Regulations on gaps between any two Audit Committee  
The Committee met on th June, 2020, th August, 2020, th  and th February,  The 
necessary  was present for all  The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual 

 Meeting of the  The Table below  the attendance of the Audit Committee members:

Director 29.06.2020 12.08.2020 12.11.2020 12.02.2021

P P P P

P P P P

P P P P

(iii) Terms of Reference

 of the Company’s  process and the disclosure of its  information to ensure 
that the  statement is correct,  and 

 to the  the appointment, reappointment and, if  the replacement or  of statutory 
auditors, including cost auditors, if any, and  of audit fees and other terms of 

 to statutory auditors, including cost auditors, if any, for any other  rendered by 

 with the management, annual  statements and auditors report thereon before submission to the 
 for  with particular reference to:

atters  to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Directors’ Report 
of the Company from time to time

 if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

 accounting entries  estimates based on the  of  by the management
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  made  statements arising out 

 with listing and other  

 of related party transactions

 report

 with the management and Statutory Auditors, the   statements before 
submission to the  for 

 with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue  
issue, rights issue, preferential issue,  the statement of funds  for purposes other than those stated in the 
offer document/prospectus/notice, and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the  of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue and  appropriate recommendations to the  to  up steps in this 
matter

 and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance and  of audit 

 or any   of transactions of the Company with related parties

 of  loans and 

aluation of  or assets of the Company,  it is necessary

 of internal  controls and  management systems

 with the management, the performance of statutory auditors, including cost auditors and internal auditors, 
 of internal control systems

 the  of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
 and seniority of the  heading the department, reporting structure,  and  of 

internal audit

 with internal auditors, any   and  thereon

 the  of any internal  by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature, and reporting the matter to the 

 with statutory auditors, before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post 
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern

o  into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
 case of  of declared  and creditors

o  the functioning of the   mechanism

 of appointment of the CFO or any other person heading the  function or discharging that function 
after assessing   and  of the candidate

 out such other functions as may be  referred to the Committee by the Company’s  of 
Directors and/or other Committees of 

  statements, in particular the  made by the Company’s unlisted 

 the following information:

 Management Discussion and Analysis of  condition and results of 

 of  related party transactions   by the Audit  submitted by 

 letters/letters of internal control  issued by the statutory 

 audit reports relating to internal  and

 appointment,  and terms of remuneration of internal auditors / chief internal auditor

 of 

 statement of  including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to  
 in terms of Regulation  of the   

nnual statement of funds  for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/
notice in terms of Regulation  of the   
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B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

 The Committee comprises of three  Independent Directors in pursuant to Regulation  of the  
   Sandeep Seth is the Chairman of the  Other members of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee are  and    Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the 
Nomination and Remuneration  The Composition of Remuneration and Nomination Committee is 
pursuant to the  of Section  of the Companies Act,  and Regulation  of   

(ii) Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2020-21

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met  times during the  The necessary  was present 
for the Meeting  The table below  the Attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members:

Director 29.06.2020 12.11.2020 23.11.2020

P P P

P P P

P P P

(iii) Terms of reference

 The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as 

  and recommending appropriate Independent Directors,  and Non 
 Directors on the  of the Company based on the   attributes, 

independence of a director and  of time with him or her to  to the 

 the    and  of  directors as well as the  as 
a 

 that the  comprises of a balanced combination of  Directors and  
Directors which includes a policy on  

 the   attributes and  and recommending the appointment and 
remuneration of  Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company, one  below the 

ayment of remuneration to the directors shall be  by a resolution passed by the Nomination and 
Remuneration 

 information about the Directors / Managing Directors /  time Directors   details, 
past remuneration, recognition or awards,   shall be considered and disclosed to 

 Committee shall  into consideration and ensure the compliance of  under Schedule  of 
the Companies Act,  for appointing and  of Managing Directors /  

  the remuneration, the Committee shall  into account  position of the Company, 
trend in the industry,   and past performance of the 

i  The  disclosures will be made in the Annual Report of the Company and  

 Committee shall  into the administration and superintendence of the   Option 
Scheme implemented by the Company from time to time including:

  of options to be granted under   Option Scheme per employee and in 

 conditions under which option  in employees may lapse in case of termination of employment 
for 

  period within which the employee should  the option, and that the option would 
lapse on failure to  the option within the  

  time period within which the employee shall  the  options in the  of 
termination or resignation of an 
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 right of an employee to  all options  in him at one time or  points of time 
within the  

 procedure for  a fair and reasonable  to the number of options and to the 
 price in case of corporate actions, such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger, sale of  

and 

 granting,  and  of options in case of employees who are on long  and the 
procedure for cashless  of 

o carry out any other function as is mandated by the  from time to time and/or enforced by any 
statutory  amendment or  as may be applicable or as may be necessary or 
appropriate for performance of its 

(iv) Remuneration of Directors

 

 Remuneration of the  is determined periodically by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee within the permissible limits under the applicable  of law and 
by  

 Remuneration to  Director for the  year  is as under:

Name of the Director Salary (Rs.) Stock Options Notice Period

 includes  Salary,   Allowances as per Income Ta Rules and contribution to P  

   Directors 

are paid sitting fees within the limits prescribed under 

 The details of sitting fees paid for attending the  Meetings to the  Directors for the 
 year  is as under: 

Name of the Director Board Meeting Fees 
(Rs.) *

Committee Meeting 
Fees (Rs.) *

Total  
(Rs.)

 
th

 There has been no other material pecuniary relationship or business transactions by the Company with any of the 

 BOARD EVALUATION
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th

C. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

(i) Composition 

 The  Relationship Committee comprises of three  Directors and all are Independent 
Directors in pursuant to Regulation 20 of the     Sandeep Seth is the Chairman of 
the  Relationship  Other members of the  Relationship Committee are 

  and    

 Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the 

(ii) Meetings and attendance during the Financial Year 2020-21 

 The Committee meets to attend shareholders  together with the status report on the nature of  
  the disposal   Meetings were held during the 

Director 05.05.2020 29.06.2020 11.08.2020 12.11.2020 10.12.2020 12.02.2021

P P P P P P

P P P P P P

P P P P P P

(iii) Terms of Reference 

 The terms of reference of the  Relationship Committee are as under:

 and  all matters connected with the transfer, transposition and transmission of the 
Company’s 

 issue of the Company’s duplicate share / debenture  if 

 redressal of  / shareholders’ / security holders’  about  of declared 
  of Annual 

 the performance of the Company’s Registrars and Transfer 

 methods to upgrade the standard of  to 

 implementation of the Company’s Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider T

o perform all functions relating to the interests of shareholders /  of the Company as may be 
 by the  of the Companies Act,    Regulations with the   and 

guidelines issued by the  or any other regulatory authority  

st
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D. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

 The Committee comprises of three   Snehdeep Aggarwal is the Chairman of the  Other 
members of the Committee are  Ramesh  and  Sandeep Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the 
CSR  The Composition of CSR Committee is in line with the  of Section  of the Companies 
Act, 

(ii) Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2020-21 

 Two Meetings of the Committee were held during the 

Director 12.11.2020 10.02.2021

P P

A A

P P

(iii) Terms of reference 

 The broad terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as 

o formulate and recommend to the  a Corporate Social Responsibility  Policy indicating 
 to be  by the Company in compliance with  of the Companies Act,  and 

rules made there 

o recommend the amount of  to be incurred on the CSR 

o monitor the implementation of the  of the CSR P

o disseminate factually correct information to  institutions and the public at 

o carry out any other function as is mandated by the  from time to time and/or enforced by any 
statutory  amendment or  as may be applicable or as may be necessary or 
appropriate for performance of its 

 Considering the cause behind the formation of the CSR Committee, the members  refused to  sitting 

E. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

(i) Composition 

 The Management Committee  

(ii) Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2020-21 

Meetings Directors
Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal Mr. Manoj Khattar Mr. C.L. Handa

P P P
P P P
P P P
P P P
P P P
P P P
P P A
P P A
P P A
P P A
P P A
P P A
P P A

P P A
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(iii) Terms of Reference 

 The broad terms of reference of the Management Committee are as 

 term  capital  loans for business purposes from  
institutions for an amount not   crore including accepting sanction letters and renewal of 

  limits,  transactions and all such matters which are  for dealing with the  
 institutions on routine 

 for dealing/liaising with  Statutory/Regulatory authorities including state, central 
authorities  Income Ta  , MCA,  Pollution Control  Municipal Corporation, Telecom 
authorities,  Ta  authorities,  authorities,  authorities  and 

 for opening and closing of  accounts, changes in signatories for operating the  
accounts 

 for   in securities  on the  

 

o  up any other assignments as may be granted by  from time to 

F. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 As per Regulation  and  of the   Regulations, during the year under , all the Independent 
Directors met on th  and discussed  on:

 of performance of  the  Directors as a 

 of performance of the  the Company,  into account the  of 
 

 of the  content and timelines  of information between the Management and the  that 
is necessary for the  to  and reasonably perform its 

 The Directors also discussed on the compliance status and the performance of the Company  a period of three years 
and  their satisfaction on the 

 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 The location and time of the  Meeting held during the  years were as 

Annual
General 
Meeting 
(AGM)

Date Time of
AGM

Location No. of 
Special

Resolutions 
passed

rd th September, 2020

nd
26th Auditorium, National Institute of Siddha, 

 Sanatorium, Chennai, 

st th Auditorium, National Institute of Siddha, 
 Sanatorium, Chennai, 

2

 All resolutions  at the Annual  Meeting held on th th

were passed though Poll  and physical 

 the last  years

 Special Resolution proposed to be passed by way of Postal Ballot

 CREDIT RATING
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 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

   yearly results are announced within  days of the close of the  The 
audited annual results are announced within  days from the closure of the  year as per the  of 
the   Regulations, with the  

   results are forthwith sent to the   and are published in a national  
newspaper  In addition, the same are published in local language newspaper  Standard in   
and  T  within  hours of   

 Company’s  results and  press releases are displayed on the  s website: 

 Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report, which is sent to the shareholders of the 

  results, shareholding pattern,  compliances and all other corporate communication to 
the      and National   of India  are  electronically  The 
Company has complied with  submissions through     

 presentation  are sent to   and uploaded on the Company’s   yearly 
communication on the operational and  performance of the Company is sent to the 

 separate dedicated section under   on the Company’s website  information on all 

 information of interest to the  
/ 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AGM: Date, Time and Mode: th

Financial Calendar for 2021-22

th th

th th

st th of February, 2022

st March 2022: th of May, 2022

rd  
th

Not applicable

 on changes   Code 

 The Company is listed at following  

   Code:  and

   of India   Code:  Series  

 The Annual listing fee for the year  has been duly paid to both the   Demat ISIN Number with 
  for  shares   

 Annual Custody Issuer fee for the  year  has been paid by the Company to  and 

 Performance in comparison to  indices such as Nifty,  Sense  
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 NSE

Months BIL Months NSE Nifty

High 
(Rs.)

Low 
(Rs.)

Average 
(Rs.)

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

BSE

Months BIL Months S&P BSE Sensex

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)
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Months BIL Months S&P BSE Sensex

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

8. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent : MAS Services Ltd.
 or both Physical   Transfer  2

nd Floor,  Industrial Area,
    New Delhi   020 
   Te    Fa   

 

9. Physical Share Transfer System:

 
st

st

10. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2021

No. of Shares
Shareholders Shareholding

Number % to total Number % to total

66

Total 4934 100.00 12202369 100.00
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11. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2021

Category No. of Share held % of Paid up Capital

Persons acting in concert

200

Clearing Members

Total 12202369 100.00

12. Dematerialization of shares and 
liquidity share

: As on st March,   of the  capital has 

13. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 
any convertible instruments, conversion 
date and likely impact on equity

:

 

14. Plant Locations :  Chennai, 

15. Address for Correspondence : Registered 
 International  

 
  Chennai  600  Tamil Nadu 

Tel   

Company Secretary and Compliance 

 International 
  

  Chennai   Tamil Nadu 
Tel   

DISCLOSURES

of transactions with Related Parties in ordinary course of business and arm’s length basis is periodically placed before 

 As  under Regulation    Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy on dealing 
with Related Party Tr  The Policy is  on the website of the Company 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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  been no instances of  by the Company on any matter related to capital  and no 
penalties or strictures  been imposed by  or the   during the last three 

 compliance with the  regulations on  of Insider Trading, the Company has constituted  
code of conduct for its management and staff  The code lays down guidelines, which  them on procedures to be 
followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of the Company, and cautioning them of the  
of  Further, as per the guidelines on  of Insider T  Regulations,  the company has 
implemented a Code of Practice and Procedure for Fair Disclosure of  Price  

Not Applicable

Not Applicable.

 to Section  and  of the Companies Act,  and Regulation 22 of the   Regulations, the 
Company has formulated   Policy for  mechanism for Directors and employees to report to the management 
about the unethical  fraud or  of Company’s Code of  The   for  
safeguards against  of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and   for direct 
access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in   None of the personnel of the Company has been 
denied access to the Audit 

 Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account - The Company does not  any shares in the 
demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense 

 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

 None of the subsidiary of the Company falls within the meaning of   Indian subsidiary  designed 
by the    , the Company has formulated the Material Subsidiary policy and uploaded the 
same on the website of the Company 

 The Company monitors the performance of its subsidiary companies, inter alia, by the following means:

 The  statements and the minutes of the  Meetings of the subsidiary companies are noted at the  
Meetings  of the 

 Company has complied with all mandatory  of Corporate  as  under   

 NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

 



46

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

 Insider Trading Code

 The Securities and   of India  has promulgated the  rohibition of Insider T  Regulations, 
   PIT 

The  of the PIT Regulations is to curb the practice of insider trading in the securities of a listed 

The Company  of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by Insiders’ 
  in accordance with the  of the PIT 

The Code is applicable to Promoters and Promoter’s  all Directors and such Designated  who are  
to  access to unpublished price  information relating to the  The Company Secretary is the Compliance 

 for monitoring adherence to the said 

The Company has also formulated The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of  Price  
Information  in compliance with   of Insider T  Regulations, 

Code of Conduct

As per  of Regulation  of the   Regulations, with the   the  has laid down 
a Code of Conduct   for  members and Senior Management Personnel of the The Code is 
posted on the website of    All  members and Senior Management Personnel  
at  compliance with the code on an annual basis and the declaration to that effect by  Snehdeep Aggarwal, 
Chairman, is attached to this 

A Code of conduct applicable to all the employees of the  has been communicated, which are to be followed 
in day to day   To help, guide and align our  as we  business decisions that impact our daily 
operations, we rely on our  Conduct, which outlines  and describes our standards for 
conduct, compliance, and   of  It supports our continuing commitment to honest and ethical 
conduct and compliance with both the letter and the spirit of all laws, rules, and regulations, and our company’s policies, 
standards, and 

The Company  that  harassment  fundamental rights of gender , right to life and liberty 
and right to  with human dignity as guaranteed by the Constitution of  To meet this  measures  
been  to eliminate and to  necessary penal action for any act of  harassment, which includes unwelcome 

 determined  The Company has   to create wide awareness amongst the employees about 
the policy for  of  

NSE ELECTRONIC APPLICATIONS PROCESSING SYSTEMS (NEAPS) and BSE LISTING CENTER

All compliances related    results, shareholding pattern, corporate  report,  
complaints status, media releases  are also  electronically in  and   Center

SEBI COMPLAINT REDRESS SYSTEM (SCORES)

The  complaints are processed in a  web based complaints redress  The salient features of 
this system are:  database of all complaints, online upload of Action  Report  by the concerned 
companies and online  by the  of actions  on the complaints and its current 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDA)

MDA is attached separately in this Annual 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

As stipulated by  a  Practicing Company Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to 
reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository   and Central Depository  

   and the total issued and  up  This audit is carried out   and the report 
there on is submitted to the   and is placed before the  Relationship Committee of the  
of Directors of the The audit, inter alia,  that the total listed and  capital of the Company is in 
agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in  form held with  and  and total 
number of shares in physical 

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

Corporate Identity Number  of the Company, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,  of India is 

Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
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Protection Fund Authority is as under:

Financial Year Ended Date by which unclaimed dividend amount will be credited/transferred to 
the “Investor Education and Protection Fund”

Mandatory Transfer of Shares to Demat Account of Investors Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (IEPFA) in case of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend on shares for a consecutive period of 
seven years

Company 

Dematerialization of Shares – Process
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Nomination Facility 

Consolidation of Folios and avoidance of Multiple Mailing 

National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) Mandate 

Compliance Certificate

The Statutory Auditors   Chartered Accountants,   that the Company has complied with the 
conditions of Corporate  as stipulated in   Regulations and the same is  to this 
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CODE OF CONDUCT DECLARATION

Declaration

 
 

 
st March, 

 
Snehdeep Aggarwal

th

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

 

For RSM & CO.
Company Secretaries

 Sd/-
CS Ravi Sharma

Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666

UDIN: F004468C000790055 
Peer Review Cert. No 978/2020

New Delhi, th August, 
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

 to Regulation  of   Obligations and Disclosure  Regulations,  
Financial Year ended st March, 

To,
 

 International 

    Director and   Chawla, Chief Financial  responsible for the  
function to the best of our  and belief, certify 

st March,  and 
that to the best of our  and belief:

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be 

 compliance with 
 accounting standards, applicable laws and 

the year ended 
st March,  are fraudulent, illegal or  of the company’s code of 

 and that we  
 the  of internal control systems of the company pertaining 

the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware,  been disclosed to the Auditors 
and the Audit Committee and steps  been  to rectify these 

the year under 

 disclosure in the 
notes to the  and

 therein, if any, of 
the management or an employee  a  role in the company’s internal control  

 
For and on behalf of the Board

th August, 20
Manoj Khattar Raj Kumar Chawla

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members

 

st

The compliance of conditions of Corporate  is the responsibility of the  Our  was limited 
to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 
Corporate  It is neither an audit nor an  of opinion on the  statement of the 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the   to us, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate  as stipulated in the   Regulations, 

 further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future  of the Company nor the  or 
 with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

For K A S G & CO.
Firm Registration  
Chartered Accountants

R B Sharma
Partner

  

th August, 20
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of
Bhartiya International Ltd
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Bhartiya International Ltd (‘the Holding Company’) 
and its subsidiaries (the Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’) and its associate comprising 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st

Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the 

Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated State of Affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2021, its Consolidated Loss 

Basis for Opinion

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in the other matters 

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Hedge Accounting and the Related Disclosures 
for Currency Derivatives:

derivatives and the adequacy of the related disclosures 
as a key audit matter because the evaluation of hedge 
effectiveness involved management’s judgement and 

Besides, the changes in fair values of these currency 

As disclosed in note 50 to

primarily arising from Foreign currency denominated 

Principal Audit Procedures Performed:

implementation and operating effectiveness of the management’s 
controls over the valuation of currency derivatives and hedge 

evaluating the management’s determination of mark to market 
valuations and assessment of hedge effectiveness, on a sample 
basis, to evaluate the accounting for these currency derivatives 
in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Indian 

to evaluate the reasonability of fair values of the currency 
derivatives and the hedge effectiveness thereof has been 
appropriately determined by the management; and

currency derivatives and hedge accounting in accordance with 
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 52 to the Consolidated Financial Statements which states that the company’s operations & 

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated Financial Position, 
Consolidated Financial Performance (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Consolidated Cash Flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

Board of Directors /management of the companies included in the Group, and its associate are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

 Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group 
and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the group and its associates to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

controls
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which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

Other Matters

st

as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
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st, 
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditors of 
its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Group companies incorporated in India 

st

given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiaries to its directors 

for K A S G & CO.
Chartered Accountants

R. B.Sharma
Partner

Gurugram, 

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

st, 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
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procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

policies and procedures that 

dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

(3)  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all 

established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

for K A S G & CO.
Chartered Accountants

R. B.Sharma
Partner

Gurugram, 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

I Assets     
 1 Non - Current Assets    
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5  10,526.92 
 (b)  836.88 
 (c)  1,020.60 
 (d) Investment in Property 6  540.31 
 (e) Goodwill   25.25 
 (f) Intangible Assets 7  6,611.07 
 (g) Investments Accounted for using Equity Method  3,754.25 
 (h) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments  35.01 
 (ii) Loans 10  226.13 
 (i)   23.60 
 (j) 11  62.64 
 2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories 12  42,096.95 
 (b) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments 13  - 
 (ii)  14,019.68 
 (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15  1,720.25 
 (iv) Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 16  2,201.13 
 (v) Loans 17  169.15 
 (vi)  3,024.00 
 (c)   339.61 
 (d)  3,066.24 
 TOTAL ASSETS   90,299.67 
II Equity and Liabilities    
 1 Equity     
 (a) Equity Share Capital 20  1,220.24 
 (b) 21  32,811.74 
 2  Liabilities    
 Non - Current Liabilities    
 (a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings 22  12,285.75 
 (ii) 23  616.03 
 (b) Provisions  41.52 
 (c) 25  133.74 
 (d)   589.40 
 Current Liabilities    
 (a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings 26  28,817.12 
 (ii) 27   
   533.17 
 

small enterprises
  9,706.86 

 (iii)  2,956.01 
 (b) Provisions  357.07 
 (c) 30  118.36 
 (d)   112.66 
 TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   90,299.67 
  
  1 to 52   

As per our report of even date attached
For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia
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CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Note 

No.
 Year Ended  

31st March, 2021 
 Year Ended  

31st March, 2020 
 INCOME    

 31  54,839.35 
 32  495.09 

 Total Income   55,334.44 
 EXPENSES    
 Cost of material consumed 33  21,352.81 

   11,699.60 
 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods  89.19 
 35  4,607.39 
 Finance Costs 36  2,385.98 
 37  1,033.49 
  13,867.95 
 Total Expenses   55,036.41 
 Profit/ (Loss) before Share of net Profit/(Loss) of 

Associate 
  298.03 

   (887.33)
III Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional Items and Tax   (589.30)
   - 
 Profit / (Loss) before Tax   (589.30)
 Tax expenses   
 I   33.78 
 ii   (5.41)
 Profit / (Loss) for the year   (617.67)
 Other Comprehensive Income    
 Items that will not be Reclassified to profit or Loss    
   34.63 
   (8.87)
 Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (591.91)
 Profit Attributable to :    
   (614.66)
   (3.01)
 Other Comprehensive income Attributable to :    
   25.76 
   - 
 Total Comprehensive income Attributable to :    
   (588.90)
   (3.01)
 Earnings per equity share of Face Value    
 Basic (in Rupees)   (4.83)

 Diluted (in Rupees)   (4.82)
   
 

statements
1 to 52   

As per our report of even date attached
For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia



58

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CO
N

SO
LI

D
A

TE
D

 S
TA

TE
M

EN
T 

O
F 

CH
A

N
G

ES
 I

N
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

FO
R 

TH
E 

YE
A

R 
EN

D
ED

 3
1S

T 
M

A
RC

H
, 2

02
1

Eq
ui

ty
 S

h
a

re
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
 

Rs
. i

n
 L

a
kh

s
Pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

s
N

ot
es

Am
ou

nt

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
0

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
1

O
th

er
 E

q
ui

ty
 (

Re
fe

r 
n

ot
e 

n
o.

 2
1 

)
Pa

rti
cu

la
rs

Re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 S
ur

pl
us

  
To

ta
l

 S
ha

re
 

ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
m

on
ey

 
pe

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
al

lo
tm

en
t  

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

St
oc

k 
O

pt
io

ns
 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g  

Pr
ef

er
en

tia
l 

sh
ar

e 
W

ar
ra

nt
 

Fo
rfe

ite
d 

" N
on

-
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

  
In

te
re

st 
"

 F
or

ei
gn

 
Cu

rr
en

cy
 

Tr
an

sla
tio

n 
Re

se
rv

e 
(F

CT
R)

 

Ca
pi

ta
l  

Re
se

rv
e

Se
cu

rit
ie

s 
Pr

em
iu

m
 

G
en

er
al

  
Re

se
rv

e 
Re

ta
in

ed
  

Ea
rn

in
gs

O
th

er
 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
In

co
m

e(
de

fin
ed

 
be

ne
fit

 p
la

n)
 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

01
9

 -
  

22
7.

14
92

5.
75

14
7.

56
17

8.
49

 8
,4

70
.7

7 
 7

,7
98

.2
0 

 3
,3

06
.5

3 
 1

7,
22

9.
98

 
 (8

.1
7)

 3
8,

27
6.

25
 

Se
cu

rit
ies

 p
re

mi
um

 o
n 

iss
ue

 o
f s

ha
re

Cu
rre

nc
y F

luc
tua

tio
n 

Re
se

rv
e

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
0

 -
   

 2
30

.9
7 

 9
25

.7
5 

 1
45

.9
7 

 6
96

.0
0 

 8
,4

70
.7

7 
 7

,8
34

.4
6 

 3
,5

06
.5

3 
 1

1,
62

3.
63

 
 2

1.
68

 
 3

3,
45

5.
76

 

Se
cu

rit
ies

 p
re

mi
um

 o
n 

iss
ue

 o
f s

ha
re

Cu
rre

nc
y F

luc
tua

tio
n 

Re
se

rv
e

M
on

ey
 R

ec
eiv

ed
 d

ur
ing

 th
e 

ye
ar

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
1

 0
.3

7 
 1

09
.9

7 
 9

25
.7

5 
 1

42
.9

6 
 6

43
.3

2 
 8

,4
70

.7
7 

 7
,8

36
.8

1 
 3

,6
25

.3
8 

 1
1,

00
8.

97
 

 4
7.

44
 

 3
2,

81
1.

74
 

Co
m

po
ne

nt
 o

f o
th

er
 E

qu
ity

 
N

at
ur

e 
an

d 
Pu

rp
os

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
s 

pe
r o

ur
 re

po
rt 

of
 e

ve
n 

da
te

 a
tta

ch
ed

Fo
r 

K
 A

 S
 G

 &
 C

O
. 

 
 

Fo
r 

a
n

d
 o

n
 b

eh
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

C
ha

rte
re

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts

R.
B

.S
h

a
rm

a
 

Yo
g

es
h

 K
um

a
r 

G
a

ut
a

m
 

Ra
j K

um
a

r 
Ch

a
w

la
 

M
a

n
oj

 K
h

a
tt

a
r 

Ra
m

es
h

 B
h

a
ti

a



59

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakhs

 Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before tax as per statement of Profit and loss  (589.30)

Adjustment for :
 887.33 

Finance Cost  2,385.98 
 1,033.49 

 - 
 6.24 

 - 

Rental Income  (300.00)

Dividend Income  - 

Interest Income  (8.82)

Government Grant Income  (4.17)

   
Operating profit/(loss) before Working Capital Changes  3,410.75 

Movements in working capital:
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  2,520.51 

 (425.13)

Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities  (106.24)

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions  (28.98)

Decrease/ (increase) in inventories  598.85 

Decrease/ (increase) trade receivables  (1,390.61)

Decrease/ (increase) in loan  (2.18)
 (270.32)

Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets  (1,141.53)
 (5.27)

 - 
Cash (used in) / generated from operations  3,159.85 

 (467.84)

Currency Fluctuation reserve consolidation  (52.68)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities - (A)  2,639.33 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 (1,703.60)

Capital advance/Capital creditors (net)  29.02 
 4.12 

Purchase of non current investments(net)  - 

Security deposit  33.48 

Rental Income  300.00 

Interest Income  8.82 
 (1,034.26)

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities - (B)  (2,362.42)
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakhs

 Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 7,461.62 

 (8,490.37)

Payment of lease Liability  (128.33)

Share Capital including securities premium  0.62 

Interest and processing fees paid (net)  (2,335.08)

 - 

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities - (C)  (3,491.54)

 (3,214.63)

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year  4,934.88 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  1,720.25 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  36.07 

In current accounts  1,629.19 

In deposit accounts  54.99 

Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement  1,720.25 

As per our report of even date attached
For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

 Bhartiya International  Limited ( ‘the Holding Company’)  is a public limited company with domiciled in India and 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of leather products 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

 Based on the nature of products/activities and the time between acquisition of assets  and their realisation in cash and 

3 Principles of Consolidation

 Goodwill represents the difference between the Company’s share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

4.2 Investment Properties

4.3 Intangible Assets

4.4 Lease

 Company as a Lessee

(i) Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 

(ii) Lease Liabilities

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 

lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

(iii) Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

 Company as a Lessor

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 

4.5 Inventories

4.6 Cash & Cash Equivalents

deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered part of the 

4.7 Employee Benefits

 Defined Contribution Plan

 Defined Benefit Plan

immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in 

4.8 Financial instruments 

 Financial Assets

 Financial Assets are subsequently classified as measured at
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 Debt Instruments:

(a) Measured at Amortised Cost:

(b) Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: 

(c) Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, 

 Equity Instruments:

 Derecognition

 Financial Liabilities
 Initial Recognition and Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement

 Loans and Borrowings

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 

 Trade and Other Payable

 Derecognition
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 Derivative Instruments:

4.9 Provision and Contingent Liabilities 

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 

4.10 Revenue Recognition 

 Revenue from Services

 Other operating revenue - Export incentives

 Interest Income

 Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method

 Dividend Income

4.11 Foreign Currency Translation

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of 

4.12 Income Tax

 Current Tax

where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net 

 Deferred Tax
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

4.13 Earning per share

shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could 

4.14 Borrowing Cost

 Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 

asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part 

4.15 Government Grants

 Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions 

4.16 Share Based Payment 

basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a 

4.17 Critical Estimates and Judgements -

are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally 

 The areas involving critical estimates or judgement are:

 Provision and contingent liability
 Carry value of investment in associates 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Rs. in Lakhs 
Particulars LAND OTHER THAN LAND  

Freehold Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Vehicles Office 
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment 

Total

Gross Carrying Amount         
Balance as at  
31st March, 2019
Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2020

 255.70  5,270.48  6,371.60  590.40  236.09 399.99  210.08  13,334.34 

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2021

 255.70  5,571.84  6,567.87  633.31  222.31  418.95  216.95  13,886.94 

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at  

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2020

 -    621.49  1,283.41  223.82  101.44  189.29  155.79  2,575.24 

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2021

 -    790.53  1,725.69  304.32  117.59  239.19  182.70  3,360.02 

Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2020

 10,759.10 

Balance as at  
31st March, 2021

 10,526.92 

 Capital Work in Progress  Rs. in Lakhs
31st March, 2020  1,108.24 
31st March, 2021  836.88 

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Particulars Land Building Total

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  532.34  734.19  1,266.53 
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31st March, 2019
Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  25.28  220.65  245.93 
Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  507.06  513.54  1,020.60 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Land & Building

Gross Carrying amount  
Balance as at 31st March, 2019

Addition

Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  594.85 

Addition

Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  594.85 
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2019

Addition

Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020  43.63 

Addition

Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  54.54 
Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2020

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  540.31 
Fair Value 

As at 31st March,2020

As at 31st March,2021 3224.05 

 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Rental income derived from investment properties  253.35 

generating rental income
 -   

Income Arising from Investment Properties before Depreciation  253.35 

Depreciation  10.91 
Income from Investment Properties (Net)  242.44 

Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments to be received in aggregate & each of following year:

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Not later than one year  235.35 
 986.57 
 699.47 

Estimation of Fair Value
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Goodwill  Computer 
Software 

 Brand/
Patent 

 Total 

Gross Carrying Amount    

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021
Accumulated Depreciation

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020

Addition
Disposal 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021
Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
Balance as at 31st March, 2021

8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD 
Particulars  No. of 

Shares/Units 
 As at

 31st March, 2021 
 No. of 

 Shares/Units
 As at

 31st March, 2020 
Investments in Associates  
(Unquoted at Cost )

    

(a) Investment in Associate Company #  

Equity Shares  34,393,260  3,754.25 

 3,754.25 

#Particulars of Investment in 
Associate Company 

 

A)  

% of ownership interest 36.77%

Cost of Acquisition  3,999.60 

Share of Reserves & Surplus  (244.67)

 3,754.93 

B)  

% of ownership interest 50.00%

Cost of Acquisition  0.50 

Share of Reserves & Surplus  (1.18)

 (0.68)

 3,754.25 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

9. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As on 31st March, 2021  As on 31st March, 2020 

 Units/ Share 
(No.) 

 Amount 
(Rs.) 

 Units/ Share 
(No.) 

 Amount 
(Rs.) 

A) Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)     

 At Fair value through Profit and loss     

 i)  1.124  0.01 

   0.01  

B) Investments in Equity Shares (Unquoted)     

 At Fair value through Profit and loss     

 i)  31,525  35.00  31,525 

 Total (A+B)   35.01 

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   35.01  

Aggregate amount of impairment in value 
of unquoted Investments

  

10. NON-CURRENT LOAN

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
 31st March, 2020 

  

 226.13 

(b) Loan to Employee  -   

TOTAL  226.13 

11. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Capital Advances  37.85 

 8.63 

 0.60 

(d)  Prepayment Lease Rent  15.56 

-

TOTAL  62.64 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

12.  INVENTORIES Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
 31st March, 2020 

(a) Raw Materials  27,889.02 

 87.86 

 651.46 

(d) Finished Goods  9,839.82 

(e) Consumable Store  3,628.79 

TOTAL  42,096.95 

13. CURRENT INVESTMENT

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2021  As on 31st March, 2020 

 Shares (No)  Amount (Rs)  Shares (No)  Amount (Rs) 

A) Investment In Equity Instrument (Unquoted)  

 At Fair value through Profit and Loss  

 i)  31,792  -   

  - 

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments   -  

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES  

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
 31st March, 2020 

 

 14,019.68 

(b) Receivable from related parties  -  - 

TOTAL  14,019.68 

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

a) Balances with Banks   

 In current accounts  1,629.19 

 In deposit accounts  54.99 

b) Cash on Hand  36.07 

TOTAL  1,720.25 

16. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 2,194.01 

 7.12 

TOTAL  2,201.13 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

17. CURRENT LOAN  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
 31st March, 2020 

  

 73.43 

(b) Loan to Employee  95.72 

TOTAL  169.15 

18. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 1,779.74 

b) Insurance claim receivable  132.57 

 1,038.32 

 51.72 

 21.65 

TOTAL  3,024.00 

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

a) Advances with Suppliers  2,614.20 

 414.58 

 -   

d) Mat Credit Entitlement  14.55 

 22.00 

f) Prepayment Lease Rent  0.91 

TOTAL  3,066.24 

20. SHARE CAPITAL   

Authorised Share Capital   

 a)   2,000.00 

 b)   500.00 

  2,500.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up : 

 a)   1,220.24 

TOTAL  1,220.24 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

No. of 
Shares

Amount No. of 
Shares

Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  12,201,869  1,220.19 

Shares Issued during the year  500  0.05 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  12,202,369  1,220.24 

 Name of the Share holders As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

No. of 
Shares

 % of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares

 % of 
Holding

 (a)  Snehdeep Aggarwal  1,143,362  9.37 

 (b)  1,010,000  8.28  1,000,000 

 (c)  3,047,100  24.97  2,215,100 

 (d)  681,913  5.59 

 (e)  706,474  5.79 

 (f)  -  -   

 Shares Reserved for issue under options 

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

No. of Shares 

 25,511 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars 31st 
March, 

2021

31st 
March, 

2020

31st 
March, 

2019

31st 
March, 

2018

31st 
March, 

2017

 500 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

22. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

Secured   
 12,268.58 

 17.17 
TOTAL  12,285.75 

Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

the Machinery funded and personal guarantee of one of 

is secured by First Charge on the commercial property 

lacs) is secured by First Charge on the commercial property 

Nellore District, Andhara Pradesh & hypothecation on 

Nellore District, Andhara Pradesh & hypothecation on 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

lacs) is secured by First pari passu charge on inventory, 
Book debts and other current assets of the company present 

lacs) is Secured by the Post dated cheques and Personal 

Loan

secured by second charge on the entire current assets of 

and Cash Flows, receivables, book debts and revenue of 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

(a) Security Deposit with Related Parties  129.37 

(b) Lease Liability#  486.66 

TOTAL  616.03 

24. NON-CURRENT PROVISION 

 41.52 

TOTAL  41.52 

25. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

(a) Government Grant  57.02 

(b) Advance Lease Rent  76.72 

TOTAL  133.74 

26. CURRENT BORROWING

Secured   

 28,817.12 

TOTAL  28,817.12 

27. TRADE PAYABLE

(a) Acceptances  3,046.48 

(b) Payable to Micro and Small Enterprises  533.17 

(c) Payable to others than Micro and Small Enterprises  6,660.38 

TOTAL  10,240.03 

28. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    

 1,961.12 

(b) Interest Accrued  57.51 

 7.12 

(d) Due to Employee  427.65 

 197.86 

(f) Statutory Dues Payable  178.37 

(g) Capital Payables  18.19 

 5.05 

 -   

(j) Lease Liability  103.14 

TOTAL  2,956.01 



78

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

29. PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 357.07 

 TOTAL  357.07 

30. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Advance from Customer  118.36 

TOTAL  118.36 

31. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

Sales of products   

(a) Sales Manufactured Goods  38,184.44 

 14,299.78 

Sales of Services  864.28 

Other Operating Revenues 

 1,966.56 

 (475.71)

TOTAL  54,839.35 

32. OTHER INCOME    

(a) Interest Income  8.82 

 300.00 

 -   

 186.27 

TOTAL  495.09 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

33. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

 32,765.86 

 20,843.15 

  53,609.01 

 32,256.20 

MATERIALS CONSUMED  21,352.81 

34. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS  

 8,673.82 

 Closing Stock  8,584.63 

Decrease/(Increase)  89.19 

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(a) Salary & Allowances  4,034.83 

 455.92 

 116.64 

 -   

TOTAL  4,607.39 

36. FINANCE COST

 1,985.43 

(b) Borrowing Cost  332.46 

 68.09 

TOTAL  2,385.98 

37. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

(a) Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment  814.63 

(b) Amortisation on Intangible Assets  76.51 

(c) Depreciation on Investment on Properties  10.91 

(d) Amortisation on Right of use Assets  131.44 

TOTAL  1,033.49 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

38. OTHER EXPENSES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

(I) Manufacturing Expenses   

(a) Fabrication Charges  8,597.45 

 370.36 

(c) Freight & Cartage  18.00 

   

(II) Selling & Administrative Expenses   

(a) Legal And Professional Charges  1,102.27 

(b) Power & Fuel  284.28 

(c) Bank Charges  434.07 

(d) Repair & Maintenance   

 52.92 

 113.01 

 475.39 

(e) Communication  79.55 

 86.08 

(g) Insurance  135.12 

(h) Rent  123.90 

 390.80 

 601.37 

(k) Commission, Brokerage & Discount  256.05 

 6.24 

 559.68 

 84.76 

(o) Directors Meeting Fees  6.30 

 26.50 

(q) Bad Debts  23.61 

(r) Auditors Remuneration  40.24 

TOTAL  13,867.95 

39. TAX EXPENSES

I) Current Tax   

 33.78 

(b) Mat Credit Entitlement  -   

  33.78 

II) Deferred Tax   

 (5.41)

 28.37 

(4.81%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

 A reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory income 
tax rate to the profit before income taxes is summarized below:

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

 (589.30)

Statutory Income Tax Rate 25.168%

 (148.32)

 -   

 -   

 (66.72)

 223.32 

 (19.46)

 39.55 

Income Tax charge to Statement of Profit and Loss Account  28.37 

40.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
 31st March, 2021 

 As at 
 31st March, 2020 

 i)  734.11 

 ii) Standby Letter of credit (SBLC) issued by company bankers in 
favour of the bankers of its subsidiaries 

 8,849.21 

 iii)  Corporate Guarantee given by the company to a bank  against 
facilities granted by that bank to its wholly owned subsidiaries 

 428.93 

 iv)  56.60 

Capital and Other Commitments

 i) Commitments under import of capital goods at concessional  213.34 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

41. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS     

a) Defined Contribution Plans Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

  

a) Provident Fund*  195.47 

b) Employees State lnsurance Corporation  2.91 

b) Defined Benefit Plans

i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Principal Assumptions Gratuity
As at  

31st March, 2021
As at  

31st March, 2020
6.80%

Discount rate 6.80%
Salary increase rate 3% for one year 

and 6% thereafter
3% for two year and 

6% thereafter
Employee turnover 5.00%
In service mortality IALM (2012-14)

ii) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans 
are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity

Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Current Service Cost  72.17 

 3.73 

Past Service Cost  -   

Components of defined benefit costs recognised 
in profit or Loss

 75.90 

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation for the year  (3.43)

 (31.20)

Net(Income)/Expenses for the year ended 
recognized in OCI

 (34.63)

iii) The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its 
Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars Gratuity

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

 435.00

 (423.00)

Net Liability arising from Defined Benefit 
Obligation

 12.00 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

iv) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

 385.74 

Interest Cost  3.73 

Current Service Cost  72.17 

Past Service Cost  -   

 (63.01)

Actuarial (gains)/ Losses  (3.43)

 395.20 

v) Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity

Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

 324.78 

Interest Income  21.20 

Contribution by the Employer  99.97 

 (22.53)

 423.42 

* Fund Managed by the approved Insurance Company Kotak Life Insurance

Particulars Gratuity

Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Investment With Insurer 100.00%

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Effect of Increase/decrease in discount rate  

Effect of Increase/decrease in salary escalation  

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Effect of Increase/decrease in discount rate  

Effect of Increase/decrease in salary escalation  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

42. EARNING PER SHARE     Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

 (588.90)

No. of share at the beginning of the year (A)  12,201,869 

Equity allotted during the year  500 

Weighted average shares (B)  177 

 12,202,046 

Effect of diluted number of share 

 22,859 

Weighted average number of equity share for diluted earning per share  12,224,905 

Basic earning per share  (4.83)

Diluted earning per share  (4.82)

43. EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG) 

imported under EPCG scheme being Government Grant, is accounted as stated in the Accounting policy on Government 

44. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Grant date April 5, 2018

April 05,2020 April 05,2021 April 05,2022
%age of vesting

Grant date February 03, 2018

February 03,2020 February 03,2021 February 03,2022
%age of vesting

Grant date December 31, 2015

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017
%age of vesting

 

Grant date September 16, 2015

September 16, 2016 September 16, 2017
%age of vesting

 

Grant date January 28, 2014

1st February, 2015 1st March, 2015
%age of vesting

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period 91,823

Number of options granted during the year -

Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year 65,812

Number of options vested during the year 14,000  11,000 

500

500

implemented directly by the company
 Rs. 25,000 

NA NA

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year 25,511

25,511
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Date of Grant September 16, 2015 December 31, 2015 February 3, 2018 April 5, 2018

Weighted average share price

weighted average of vesting 
7 years 7 years

Risk free rate of return

45. Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

(a) Gross amount required to be spent  53.84 
  

    (i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
 81.85 

 -   

46. 

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Consultancy Charges  631.92 
Design & Development  751.99 
Bank charges & interest  93.61 

47. Fair Value Measurement

 The following Methods and Assumptions were used to Estimate the Fair Values: 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation techniques.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021
Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     
At Amortised cost     

 14,019.68 

Cash & Cash Equivalents  1,720.25 
 2,201.13 

Loans  395.28 
 3,002.35 

At FVTPL

Investments  35.01 
 21.65 

Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost

Borrowings  43,063.99 
 10,240.03 
 1,610.92 

At FVTPL     
-

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020
Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     
At Amortised cost     

Cash & cash equivalents

Loans

At FVTPL

Investments

Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost

Borrowings

At FVTPL     
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

48. Capital Management

 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all 

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 

 31st March, 2021
As at 

 31st March, 2020
 43,063.99 

 (1,720.25)
Net debt  41,343.74 
Equity Share Capital  1,220.24 

 32,811.74 
Total Capital  34,031.98 
Capital and Net Debt  75,375.72 
Gearing Ratio 54.85%

 In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it 

49. Disclosures as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of the enterprises consolidated 
as Subsidiary/Associates :

Name of the Entities Net Assets i.e. Total Assets 
minus Total Liabilities

 Share in Profit or Loss

As a % of 
Consolidated 

net assets

Amount As a % of 
Consolidated 

Profit

Amount

Parent :
Subsidiary :
Indian Subsidiaries
Bhartiya Global Marketing Ltd

Bhartiya International Sez Ltd
Bhartiya Fashion Retail Ltd 

Foreign Subsidiaries

Sub Total
Inter-Company Elimination & Consolidation Adjustments
Grand Total
Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries
Share of Profit / (Loss) in Associates
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

50. Financial Risk Management

 Credit Risk

 Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, investments 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Less than 6 month  12,895.69 

More than 6 month  1,246.23 

 Liquidity Risk

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 year Total

Borrowing (Including current  
maturity of long term borrowing)

 35,800.20  6,896.06  367.73  43,063.99 

 10,240.03 - -  10,240.03 

 1,331.24  154.45  125.23  1,610.92 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 year Total

Borrowing (Including current  
maturity of long term borrowing)

 Market Risk

 Interest Rate Risk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk  Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020
 43,063.99 

% of Borrowings out of above bearing variable rate of interest 66.92%

Interest Rate Sensitivity

 288.17 

 288.17 

 Foreign Currency Risk Management

Particulars As at 31st, March, 2021 As at 31st, March, 2020
Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

 Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities 

 80.55  407.37 
 37.22  157.30 

GBP  34.87  39.21 

HKD  282.17  293.34 

RMB  1.91  0.63 

CHF  150.63  98.33 

 Foreign Currency Sensitivity

currencies, which is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

Foreign Currency Monetary Assets     
 294.45  (294.45)
 159.64  (159.64)

GBP  175.71  (175.71)
HKD  132.69  (132.69)
RMB  1.06  (1.06)
CHF  583.65  (583.65)
     
Foreign Currency Monetary Liabilities  

 (1,489.14)  1,489.14 
 (674.66)  674.66 

GBP  (197.58)  197.58 
HKD  (137.94)  137.94 
RMB  (0.35)  0.35 
CHF  (381.00)  381.00 
Impact on Profit or Loss as at the 
end of reporting year

 (1,533.47)  1,533.47 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 Disclosure Regarding Derivative Instruments.

approved by the Board of Directors, which provide principles on the use of such forward contracts consistent with the 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Forwards Contracts USD  58.80 

EURO  5.50 

GBP  38.00 GBP

51. Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24  Rs. in Lakhs

a) Name of Related Parties & Nature of Relationship: Country  Ownership Interest 
i) Associate Parties :

 India 
 India 

ii) Executive Directors:
Manoj Khattar
Amrishpal Singh Managing Director 
Nikhil Aggarwal Director 
Walter willi Zwahlen Director 

iii) Non-Executive Directors
Snehdeep Aggarwal  Director 
Ramesh Bhatia  Director 

 Independent Director 
Sandeep Seth  Independent Director 
Shashank  Independent Director 

 Independent Director 
SM Swathi  Independent Director

 Independent Director 
 Director 

Mukul Harmilapi  Director 

iv) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by 
Directors or their relatives :

v) Relatives of Directors with whom transactions have taken place:
Kanwal Aggarwal
Arjun Aggarwal

vi) Trust ( )
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 Rs. in Lakhs

b) Transactions during the year with Related Parties :

Particulars  2020-21  2019-20 

 1. Salaries

Manoj Khattar

Amrishpal Singh

Nikhil Aggarwal

Walter Willi Zwahlen

 2. Lease Rent Received

Parushni Interior Designs Pvt Ltd

 3. Legal and Professional Fees

Snehdeep Aggarwal

Mukul Harmilapi

 4. Sitting Fee

Ramesh Bhatia

Sandeep Seth

Shashank

SM Swati

 5. Contribution to Gratuity Trust

 c)  Balances Outstanding at the year end: 

1. Advance Paid

1. Expenses/Others Payables

Amrishpal Singh

Snehdeep Aggarwal

2. Security Deposit (Received)
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52.  COVID-19 

 Assessment Note: 

 Accordingly, the company has assessed the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and has considered all 

and the recoverability and carrying value of certain assets such as property, plant and equipment, investments, inventories, 

economic environment being uncertain may affect the underlying assumptions and estimates used to prepare Company’s 

company continues its business activities in lines with the guidelines issue by the Government authorities take steps to 

As per our report of even date attached
For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Members of 

Bhartiya International Ltd

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

Bhartiya International Ltd (‘the Company’), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st

st

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Hedge Accounting and the Related Disclosures for 
Currency Derivatives:

Principal Audit Procedures Performed:

appropriately determined by the management; and
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Emphasis of Matter

st

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
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regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

st

st
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for K A S G & CO.

R.B.Sharma
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

st 

i. 

st

ii. 

iii. 

iv. 

v. 

vi. 

vii. 

Nature of Demand Amount in Rs Period to which the 
Amount Relates

Forum where appeal has 
been filed

Bengaluru

viii. 

ix. 

x. 
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xi. 

xii. 

xiii. 

xiv. 

xv. 

xvi. 

for K A S G & CO.

R.B.Sharma
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Bhartiya International Ltd”
st 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Opinion 

for K A S G & CO.

R.B.Sharma
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

I Assets     
 1 Non - Current Assets    
 (a)  9,493.53 
 (b)  16.28 
 (c)  800.82 
 (d)  535.38 
 (e)  38.59 
  6,576.09 
 (g)    
 (i) Investments  0.01 
 (ii)  82.66 
 (iii)  29.23 
 (h) 11  51.26 
 2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories  40,313.19 
 (b)    
 (i) Investments 13  - 
 (ii)  7,774.03 
 (iii)  489.81 
 (iv)  2,181.40 
 (v)  1,195.25 
 (vi)  2,839.72 
 (c)   204.39 
 (d)  2,992.32 
  TOTAL ASSETS   75,613.96 
II Equity and Liabilities    
 1 Equity     
 (a)  1,220.24 
 (b)  27,920.40 
 2 Liabilities    
    
 (a)    
 (i) Borrowings  8,388.33 
 (ii)  364.24 
 (b)  - 
 (c)  133.74 
 (d)  661.66 
 3 Current Liabilities    
 (a)    
 (i) Borrowings  28,816.85 
 (ii)   
 

small enterprises
  528.39 

 
enterprises and small enterprises

  4,595.56 

 (iii)  2,605.55 
 (b)  149.81 
 (c) 31  116.87 
 (d)   112.32 
  TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   75,613.96 
   
  

statements

For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Note 
No.

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

INCOME    

 39,677.24 

33  427.60 

Total Income   40,104.84 

EXPENSES    

 20,990.10 

  114.84 

 86.27 

 3,650.89 

Finance Costs  2,318.12 

 835.70 

 11,871.08 

Total Expenses   39,867.00 

Profit / (Loss) before tax for the year   237.84 

Tax Expenses   

i   - 

ii   79.95 

Profit / (Loss) for the year (A)   157.89 

Other Comprehensive Income    

Items that will not be Reclassified to profit or Loss    

  33.95 

  (8.70)

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (B)   25.25 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (A+B)   183.14 

Earnings per equity share of Face Value    

  1.29 

  1.29 

statements
1 to   

For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia
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STANDALONE  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

A  Equity Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Notes Amount

B  Other Equity (Refer Note 21)

Particulars  Application 
Money 

Pending for 
allotment 

 Employee 
Stock 

Options 
Outstanding  

 Reserves and Surplus Total

 Preferential 
Share 

Warrant  
Forfeited 

 
Securities 
Premium  

 General 
Reserve  

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income (defined 
benefit plan ) 

Balance as at 31st March, 2019  -    227.14  925.75  7,798.20  3,198.51  13,561.49  (18.73)  25,692.36 

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  -    230.97  925.75  7,834.46  3,398.51  15,335.41  11.58  27,736.68 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  0.37  109.98  925.75  7,836.81  3,517.36  15,493.30  36.83  27,920.40 

For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2020 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit / (Loss) before tax as per statement of Profit and loss  237.84 

Adjustment for :

Finance Cost  2,318.12 

 835.70 

 6.24 

 (294.80)

Interest income  (1.58)

 (4.17)

 - 

   

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes  3,097.35 

Movements in working capital:

 793.32 

 (367.45)

 (100.75)

 (45.93)

 405.79 

 (33.50)

 (326.89)

 (96.38)

 (1,146.38)

 0.01 

 - 

Cash (used in) / generated from operations  2,179.19 

 (602.83)

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities - (A)  1,576.36 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (218.86)

 26.02 

 4.12 

Security deposit  (1.10)

 294.80 

Interest income  1.58 

 (1,014.54)

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities - (B)  (907.98)
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Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2020 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 6,996.33 

 (8,416.41)

 (100.51)

 0.37 

Share Capital including securities premium  0.25 

 (2,284.00)

 - 

Net cash from/ (used in) Financing Activities-(C)  (3,803.97)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - (A+B+C)  (3,135.59)

 3,625.40 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  489.81 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  23.08 

 466.73 

 - 

Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement  489.81 

For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTD.)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

3.2 Investment Properties 

3.3 Intangible Assets

 Computer Software

 Amortisation Method and Useful Life

3.4 Lease

 Company as a Lessee
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

(i) Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

(ii) Lease Liabilities

payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest 

 

(iii) Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

 Company as a Lessor

3.5 Investment In Subsidiaries And Associates

3.6 Inventories

3.7 Cash & Cash Equivalents



110

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

3.8 Employee Benefits

 Defined Contribution Plan

 Defined Benefit Plan

immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in 

3.9 Financial Instruments  

 Financial Assets

 Debt Instruments

(a) Measured at Amortised Cost:

(b) Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: 

(c) Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

 Equity Instruments:

 Derecognition

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial Recognition and Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement

 Loans and Borrowings

 Trade and Other Payable

 Derecognition

 Derivative Instruments 

3.10 Provision and Contingent Liabilities

3.11 Revenue Recognition 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

 Revenue from Services

 Other operating revenue - Export Incentives

 Interest Income

 Dividend Income

3.12 Foreign Currency Transactions

 Transactions and Balances

3.13 Income Tax

 Current Tax

 Deferred Tax
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

3.14 Earning per share

3.15 Borrowing Cost

3.16 Government Grants

3.17 Share Based Payment 

3.18 Critical Estimates and Judgements

 The areas involving critical estimates or judgement are:
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Freehold 
Land

Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Vehicles Office 
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment 

Total

Gross Carrying Amount         

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  223.25  4,879.76  5,611.58  354.31  219.11  378.60  215.45  11,882.06 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  223.25  5,181.12  5,798.07  361.40  205.33  394.33  222.13  12,385.63 
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  -    523.31  1,145.96  124.48  84.71  180.31  164.18  2,222.95 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  -    679.50  1,539.84  163.11  99.55  227.40  182.70  2,892.10 
Net carrying amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  223.25  4,501.62  4,258.23  198.29  105.78  166.93  39.43  9,493.53 

4.1 Capital Work in Progress 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  16.28 

4.2 

4.3 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  532.34  481.37  1,013.71 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  25.28  187.61  212.89 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  507.06  293.76  800.82 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

5. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Buildings Total

Gross Carrying Amount 

 589.92  589.92 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  589.92  589.92 

Accumulated Depreciation

 43.63  43.63 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  54.54  54.54 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  535.38  535.38 

Fair Value 

As at 31st March, 2021 2525.55 2525.55 

5.1 Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

 252.35 

generating rental income
 -   

Income arising from investment properties before 
depreciation

 252.35  252.35 

 10.91 
Income from investment properties (Net)  241.44  241.44 

5.2 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments to be received in aggregate & each of following year:
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Not later than one year  23,435,280 

 98,257,294 
 66,746,607 

5.3 Estimation of Fair Value
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Computer 

Software
Total

Gross Carrying Amount 

 299.73  299.73 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  309.31  309.31 
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31st March, 2019

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  244.44  244.44 

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  270.72  270.72 
Net carrying amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
Balance as at 31st March, 2021  38.59  38.59 

7. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020 

Shares(Nos)  Amount Shares(Nos)  Amount 
A INVESTMENTS IN WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES     
 i.   Equity Instrument at cost (Unquoted)     
  1  4,999,020  499.90 

  12,069,230  1,206.92 

  3  500,000  50.00 

  50,000  5.00 

  1,000  337.86 
 
  709,000  478.14 

     
 Total (A)   2,577.82  
 B  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES     
 i. Equity Instrument at cost (Unquoted)     
  1 

 
 34,393,260  3,999.60 

   5,000  0.50 

  Total (B)  4,000.10  
  Total (A+B)  6,577.92  
 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 

before impairment
 6,577.92  

 Less: Provision for diminution in value of 
investment 

  1.83  

 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 
after impairment

6,576.09  
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

8. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020 

 Units(No.)  Amount  Units(No.)  Amount 

 Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)     

 At Fair value through Profit and loss     

 i)  1.124  0.01 

 TOTAL   0.01  

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   0.01  

Aggregate amount of impairment in Value of 
unquoted Investments

  -  

9. NON-CURRENT LOAN

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

  

 82.66 

 -   

TOTAL  82.66 

10. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

  

 29.23 

TOTAL  29.23 

11. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

 37.85 

 8.63 

 4.78 

TOTAL  51.26 

12. INVENTORIES

 27,485.48 

 87.86 

 651.46 

 8,471.90 

(e) Consumable store  3,616.49 

TOTAL  40,313.19 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

13. CURRENT INVESTMENTS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020 

 Shares (No) Amount  Shares (No) Amount 

a) Investment In Equity Instrument ( Unquoted)     

 At Fair value through Profit and Loss  

 i)  31,792  -   

 Total -

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   -  

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

(Unsecured, considered good)  

 7,166.64 

 607.39 

 (refer no no. 53)  

TOTAL  7,774.03 

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

a) Balances with Banks   

       In current accounts  466.73 

       In term deposit  -   

 23.08 

TOTAL  489.81 

16. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

2174.28

7.12 

TOTAL 2181.40 

17. CURRENT LOAN

(Unsecured & Considered Good)   

 46.12 

 1,057.72 

(refer note no. 53 )   

 91.41 

TOTAL  1,195.25 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

18. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

 1,779.74 

b) Insurance claim receivable  132.57 

 854.04 

 51.72 

 21.65 

TOTAL  2,839.72 

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 2,611.57 

 377.74 

 -   

 2.99 

 0.02 

 TOTAL  2,992.32 

20. SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised Share Capital   

 a)   2,000.00 

 b)   500.00 

  2,500.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up :   

 a)   1,220.24 

TOTAL  1,220.24 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

 No. of Shares Amount  No. of Shares Amount

 12,201,869  1,220.19 

Shares Issued during the year  500  0.05 

 12,202,369  1,220.24 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
 

Name of the Share holders As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

 (a)  1,143,362  9.37 

 (b)  1,010,000  8.28 

 (c)  3,047,100  24.97 

 (d)  681,913  5.59 

 (e)  706,474  5.79 

 -  -   

 

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

No. of Shares 

 25,511 

 

Particulars 31st 
March, 

2021

31st 
March, 

2020

31st 
March, 

2019

31st 
March, 

2018

31st 
March, 

2017
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

22. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

Secured   

 8,371.16 

 17.17 

TOTAL  8,388.33 

Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security  Terms of Repayment 

is  secured by First Charge on the commercial property 
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Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security  Terms of Repayment 

lacs) is  secured by First pari passu charge on Inventory, 

repable

repable

repable

repable

repable

repable

repable 

23. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 84.56 

(b)  279.68 

TOTAL  364.24 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
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  NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
24. NON-CURRENT PROVISION 

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 -   

TOTAL  -   

25. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITY 

 57.02 

 76.72 

TOTAL  133.74 

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 

a) Deferred Tax Liabilities   

 661.66 

TOTAL  661.66 

27. CURRENT BORROWING

Secured   

 28,816.85 

TOTAL  28,816.85 

 

28. TRADE PAYABLE

(a)  3,046.48 

 691.97 

 857.11 

(refer note no 53)

 528.39 

TOTAL  5,123.95 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

 528.39 

 -   

the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

 -   

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
 -   

each accounting year
 -   

in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
 -   

29. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

(a) erm debt  1,863.23 

(b)  57.51 

(c)  7.12 

(d)  221.80 

(e)  219.40 

 144.95 

(g) Capital Creditors  18.19 

(h)  -   

(i)  -   

 73.35 

TOTAL  2,605.55 

30. PROVISIONS

 149.81 

TOTAL  149.81 

31. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 116.87 

TOTAL  116.87 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
32. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

Sales of Products   

(a)  37,859.35 

(b)  163.80 

Sales of Services  -   

Other Operating Revenues 

 1,966.56 

(b)  (312.47)

TOTAL  39,677.24 

Reconciliation of Revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with contracted price

 38,058.76 

 35.61 

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers  38,023.15 

Revenue by Location of Customers

India  2,036.71 

 35,986.44 

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers  38,023.15 

33. OTHER INCOME

 1.58 

(b) Other non operating income 

 294.80 

 -   

 131.22 

TOTAL  427.60 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
34. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

 32,160.81 

 20,670.58 

  52,831.39 

 31,841.29 

 MATERIALS CONSUMED  20,990.10 

35. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

 8,558.17 

(b) Closing Stock  8,471.90 

Decrease/(Increase)  86.27 

36. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

 3,243.62 

 240.90 

 166.37 

 -   

TOTAL  3,650.89 

37. FINANCE COST

 1,918.75 

(b) Borrowing Cost  331.28 

 68.09 

TOTAL  2,318.12 

38. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

 689.72 

 26.28 

 10.91 

 108.79 

TOTAL  835.70 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
39. OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

(I) Manufacturing Expenses   

(a) Fabrication Charges  7,984.00 

 323.13 

 68.25 

   

(II) Selling & Administrative Expenses   

 791.59 

 150.34 

(c) Bank Charges  342.56 

  

 50.64 

 67.58 

 428.12 

(e) Communication  60.26 

 65.20 

(g) Insurance  110.12 

 55.36 

 452.87 

 372.12 

 110.45 

 6.24 

 319.47 

 81.85 

 4.43 

 26.50 

TOTAL  11,871.08 

40. TAX EXPENSES

I) Current Tax   

 -   

II) Deferred Tax   

 79.95 

Income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and 
loss

 79.95 

33.62%
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2021 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

 237.84 

Statutory income tax rate (%)  25.17 

59.86

 -   

 -   

 -   

 (19.46)

39.55

Income tax charge to statement of profit and loss account  79.95

 (573.01)

during the year
 (79.95)

Income during the year
 (8.70)

Closing Balance  (661.66)

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021 

 As at  
31st March, 2020 

i)  734.11 

ii) 

 8,849.21 

iii)  428.93 

iv)  56.60 

42. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2021

 As at  
31st March, 2020

 i)  213.34 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Detail of amount recognised as expense for defined 
contribution plans is given below:

  

 174.24 

 1.17 

i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Principal Assumptions Gratuity

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

6.80%

6.80%

Salary increase rate 3% for one year and 
6% thereafter

5.00%

In service mortality IALM (2012-14)

ii) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans 
are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

Current Service Cost  63.33 

 1.00 

 -   

Components of defined benefit costs recognised 
in profit or Loss

 64.33 

 (2.52)

 (31.44)

Net (Income)/Expenses for the year ended 
recognized in OCI

 (33.96)

iii) The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its 
Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars Gratuity
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

 390.62 

 (419.85)

Net Liability arising from Defined Benefit 
Obligation

 (29.23)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
iv) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

 361.58 

Interest Cost  22.20 

Current Service Cost  63.33 

 (53.97)

 (2.52)

 390.62 

v) Movements in the Fair Value of the Plan Assets are as follows:

 321.22 

Interest Income  21.20 

 99.97 

 (22.53)

 419.86 

 * Fund managed by the approved insurance company Kotak Life Insurance

Investment With Insurer 100.00%

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
44. EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2021

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

 157.89 

No. of share at the beginning of the year (A)  12,201,869 

 500 

Weighted average shares (B)  177 

 12,202,046 

Effect of diluted number of share 

 22,859 

share
 12,224,905 

Basic earning per share  1.29 

 1.29 

45. EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG)

46. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Grant Date April 5, 2018
Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III Vesting IV
Vesting date

Grant Date February 03, 2018
Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III Vesting IV
Vesting date
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
Grant Date December 31, 2015
Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III
Vesting date

 

Grant Date September 16, 2015
Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III
Vesting date

 

Grant Date January 28, 2014
Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II
Vesting date

  

 

 
Particulars Year Ended 

31st March, 2021
Year Ended 

31st March, 2020

91,823

 -   

65,812

14,000

500

500

implemented directly by the company
 Rs. 25,000 

NA

25,511

25,511

Date of Grant September 16, 2015 December 31, 2015 February 03, 2018 April 5, 2018

Weighted average share price
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
47. DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

 53.84 

  

 - 

 81.85 

 -   

48. SEGMENT REPORTING DISCLOSURE

49. PAYMENT TO AUDITOR ( INCLUDED IN LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL CHARGES )

 11.50 

 4.50 

 1.50 

 0.34 

50. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation techniques. 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 7,774.03  -    -    7,774.03 

 489.81  -    -    489.81 

 2,181.40  -    -    2,181.40 

 1,277.91  -    -    1,277.91 

 2,847.30  -    -    2,847.30 

At FVTPL

Investments  0.01  0.01  -    -   

 21.65  -    21.65  -   

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Borrowings  39,068.41  -    -    39,068.41 

 5,123.95  -    -    5,123.95 

 1,106.56  -    -    1,106.56 

At FVTPL

 -    -    -    -   

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

At FVTPL

Investments

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Borrowings

At FVTPL
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

51. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

 39,068.41 

 489.81 

Net Debt  38,578.60 

 1,220.24 

 27,920.40 

Total Capital  29,140.64 

Capital and Net Debt  67,719.24 

Gearing Ratio 56.97%

st

st

52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Credit Risk

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

 4,939.41 

 1,714.24 

 1,120.38 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Liquidity Risk

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)
 31,921.00  6,779.68  367.73  39,068.41 

 5,123.95  -    -    5,123.95 

 73.35  154.45  125.23  353.03 

 1,033.21 - -  1,033.21 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

 39,068.41 

73.76%

Interest Rate Sensitivity

 573.01 

 (573.01)



138

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Foreign Currency Risk Management

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

 Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities 

 80.55  407.37 

 21.13  148.28 

 34.87  39.21 

 0.22  0.58 

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

 294.47  (294.47)
 90.62  (90.62)

 175.70  (175.70)
 0.10  (0.10)

 (1,489.04)  1,489.04 
 (636.01)  636.01 
 (197.59)  197.59 

 (0.27)  0.27 

reporting year
 (1,762.02)  1,762.02 

Disclosure Regarding Derivative Instruments.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Currency Foreign Currency 
Lacs

Currency Foreign 
Currency Lacs

Forwards Contracts USD  58.80 

 EURO  5.50 

 GBP  38.00 
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53. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24

a) Name of Related Parties & Nature of Relationship: Country  Ownership Interest 

 i) Subsidiary Companies :

 India 

 India 

 India 

 India 

 India 

 Italy 

 China 

ii) Associate Parties :

 India 

 India 

iii) Executive Directors:

iv) Non-Executive Directors

Sandeep Seth

Shashank

v) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by 
Executive Directors or their relatives :

vi) Trust
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Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  2020-21  2019-20 

b) Transactions during the year with Related Parties :
1. Sales

 804.27 
 67.40 
 33.45 
 0.30 

2. Other Income
 107.35 

 3. Purchase / Job Work
 1.56 

 1,547.69 
 1.72 

 4. Salaries
 73.41 

 5. Lease Rent / Rent Paid
 1.00 

 24.00 

 6. Lease Rent Received
 234.35 
 18.00 

 7. Service Charges Paid
 41.89 
 8.85 

 8. Legal and Professional Fees
 6.50 

 74.67 
 9.00 

 9. Sitting Fee
 0.43 
 1.08 

Sandeep Seth  1.08 
Shashank  1.08 

 0.43 
 - 

 0.32 
 10. Contribution to Gratuity Trust

 46.00 
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Particulars  2020-21  2019-20 

 c)  Balances Outstanding at the year end: 

1. Advance Paid

 11.50 

 - 

 0.03 

2. Advance with Suppliers

 1,057.47 

 0.25 

 - 

3. Trade Receivable

 85.82 

 504.71 

 1.48 

 15.38 

4. Security Deposit (Paid)

 5.00 

5. Trade Payables

 - 

 857.11 

 - 

6. Expenses/Others Payables

 2.76 

 0.69 

7. Security Deposit (Received)

 159.79 

 1.50 

8. Standby Letter of Credit (SBLC) Issued by Company Bankers

 8,849.21 

9. Corporate Guarantee given by Company

 428.93 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Lakhs
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54. COVID-19 

 ASSESSMENT NOTE:

 

For K A S G & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

R.B.Sharma Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Ramesh Bhatia
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